

Holybrook Parish Council

Serving the communities of Beansheaf Farm and Fords Farm

Council Meeting Minutes

Date of Meeting	15 th February 2021	
Location	Zoom Virtual Meeting	
Present	Cllrs. Bedwell (Chair), Baker, Collard, Croal, Lenaghan, Littlewood, S. Mistry, Oloko, Somner and Tull. Also present: Pam Kirkpatrick (Clerk) and Caroline Lenaghan (Administration Assistant),	
Circulation	All Council and Ward Members	

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panels Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 ("the Regulations") came into force on the 4 April 2020. The Regulations remove the legal obligation to hold local authority meetings at a specified physical location, by permitting members and others attending the meeting to do so by way of 'remote attendance'. The obligation to hold an Annual Meeting was also removed.

All virtual meetings held by the Parish Council before 7th May 2021 (NOTE: the date could be brought forward if the Government rules are relaxed) are enabled by this legislative change. This Protocol applies to meetings of the Council and/or its Committees, that would, but for the coronavirus pandemic and the Regulations, be held in public. All other Standing Orders remain in place.

No.	Notes	Action
150/20/21	Open forum for members of the public	
150/20/21	None.	
151/20/21	Apologies for absence	
131/20/21	None. Cllr H. Mistry was not present.	
	Declarations of Interest relevant to the Agenda	
	Cllr Somner (non-pecuniary) – items:	
152/20/21	5: Matters Arising from the minutes;6: District Councillors Report;7: Consultations: Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy for Berkshire West;8: Planning: new applications;9: Other Planning.	
	Approval and adoption of the minutes of:	
	 a) Planning meeting on Monday 18th January 2021 (planning committee only). APPROVED. Proposed by Cllr Lenaghan and seconded by Cllr Collard; 	
153/20/21	 Full Council Meeting on Monday 18th January 2021. APPROVED. Proposed by Cllr Somner and seconded by Cllr Littlewood; 	
	 c) Extraordinary Meeting on Monday 8th February 2021. APPROVED. Proposed by Cllr Baker and seconded by Cllr Littlewood. 	
	(Please note that the minutes will be issued by post to the appropriate Chairman following the meeting for signing).	

No.	Notes	Action
	Matters arising from the Minutes	
	Planning Meeting (Monday 18 th January 2021). None.	
	Full Council (Monday 18 th January 2021):	
	140/20/21 – District Councillor's Report. Cllr Somner advised that a meeting had been held with the recycling service provider regarding capacity capability. It can be confirmed that there is enough capacity built into the existing, long-term contract to cope with increased recycling levels. The levels experienced over the Christmas period were 'extreme'.	
154/20/21	Members questioned why the recycling target set in the contract was 'low' at 51%. Cllr Somner advised that this percentage is higher than in other councils and is a target that was set many years ago. It is understood that at least this level of recycling is currently being achieved.	
	141/20/21: West Berkshire Council Consultations: Response was issued to WBC on Wednesday 3 rd February 2021;	
	The West Berkshire Heritage Forum has been contacted to ask that the Linear Park and the water pumps are considered for local listings. The Secretary of the Forum advised that they support the idea and, when able to do so (due to Covid 19), they would like to work with the Council on a draft submission to present to WBC's panel.	
	Extraordinary Meeting (Monday 8 th February 2021):	PK
	EO17/20/21: To discuss the amended plans regarding application number 19/00113/OUTMAJ: Members APPROVED the proposed objection as prepared by Cllrs Baker, Bedwell, Tull and the Clerk. The Clerk will issue the response to WBC's planning department following the meeting.	
	District Councillors' report	
	Cllr Somner provided a verbal report which members acknowledged. (Appendix 1).	
155/20/21	A Member advised that there appeared to be building works taking place at number 3 Albury Gardens. Particular concern was raised with the mud which had been left on the highway. Cllr Somner will contact the resident regarding the mud and the Clerk to contact WBC's planning department to see whether the works are taking place under permitted development.	PK & RS
	Cllr Somner was asked what his level of influence is on, for example, consultations such as the Emerging Draft Plan. Cllr Somner advised that his input holds no more weight than that of the Parish Council or an individual respondent. He did, however, advise that there is weight in numbers and advised that members can also respond to all consultations as residents.	
	A member advised that the yellow lines on the Langley Hill/Charrington Road/A4 Box junction were significantly faded and in need of a re-paint. Cllr Somner advised that Officers are aware but he will chase.	
	Further actions for Cllr Somner: ascertain who owns the ditch around the perimeter of the Hawkswood Development as it is in need of a litter pick, find out where the £1.7m grant for the delivery of full fibre broadband to schools and the school laptops have been distributed. And, in conjunction with the Clerk, check the progress on the fly-tipping incident which was left at the Holybrook Centre back in August 2021.	RS

No.			Notes		Action	
156/20/21	Members to pr	EED that a subr	mission will be made.	the consultation by 23 rd February	All & PK	
	New Planning Appli Members F		llowing recommendation	ns of the Planning Committee:		
	Planning no.	Applicant	Address	Proposal		
	21/00048/HOUSE	Ms Nina Chughtai	6 Invergordon Close, Calcot	Single storey front porch and extensions.	ear	
	NO OBJECTIONS.					
157/20/21	20/02861/FUL	VIRH Ltd	18 Sandhills Way, Calcot	Demolition of existing two storextension and garage and erection two storey building to form 1 bedroom dwelling with associated parking, access, hard and landscaping, refuse and cycle storestension.	n of x 3 car soft	
	OBJECT.					
	20/02029/COMIND *as adjacent Parish	Reading Quarry	Reading Quarry, Berrys Lane, Burghfield	Development of an Energy Recover Centre and adjacent Data Centre associated infrastructure.		
	SUPPORT THE COMMENTS MADE BY FELLOW PARISHES.					
	21/00253/FUL	Mr & Mrs A Sears	West Mews, Mill Lane	Division of one house into dwellings.	two	
	NO OBJECTIONS.					
158/20/21	20/02459/HOU design at the hipped away at is removed. 21/00208/PAS required for a p from rear wall, Approval under amended). Be Council is not contact us. Ho	rear is extended the boundary. SHE – 1 Calshoroposed: Large 3m maximum her The Town and cause West Berifying the Parisl wever, we are n	Road, Calcot: Additional disorthat the eaves he 2) The proposed terraction place, Calcot: An arrhome extension for Sineight, 2.49m eaves he Country Planning (Gerkshire Council is requiren/Town Council of the ot required to comment	al drawings. Main Changes include eight is reduced to approximately be area to the rear of the rear single application to determine if prior a single Storey rear extension. Dimens eight. NOTE : This is an application heral Permitted Development) Order to inform nearby residents, West proposal in case interested particle and the decision can only be taken (General Permitted Development) Of the control of the	2.9m and extension pproval is sions 4.5m for Prior 1995 (as Berkshire es should based on	

No.	Notes A		
	Financial Information		
159/20/21	 a) Payments – Members APPROVED the payment of items listed on payment sheet 10-2020/21 		
	(Please note that the payment sheet will be issued by post to the Finance Committee Chairman following the meeting for signing).		
	b) Members accepted that the Council's CIL bid to WBC for Parish VAS's had been unsuccessful on this occasion. Reportedly, WBC received 29 bids totalling £804k and with only £500k of funds available. However, a further bidding round is expected later in the year and the Council could reapply;		
	c) Insurance; business interruption – please follow this link for detailed information: https://www.zurich.co.uk/business/coronavirus/business-interruption-fca-test-case		
	d) Members acknowledged that a VAT return to the sum of £6,569.48 was submitted to HMRC on 22 nd January 2021. The funds were received on 5 th February 2021 for the period 1 st August 2020 to 31 st December 2020.		
	Clerk's Report		
	Members acknowledged a verbal report from the Clerk. The main points:		
160/20/21	 Services completed in the Beansheaf Centre. All of which revealed no issues; The kitchen shutter repair is scheduled to take place on Wednesday 17th February 2021; Details of incidences in the Linear Park; Progress on the Underwood Road Playground foliage works and ASB experienced in the park; Issues with litter in the Parish. 		
	Members were provided with details of the historic and current water consumption at the Beansheaf Centre. The Clerk recorded her thanks to Mr Tull who has been of great assistance in this matter. Having reviewed the meter readings, dating back to 2016, it would appear, in October 2018, the readings were average. However, over the last two years, consumption has been increasing to the point that the projected consumption from January 2021 to April 2021 is estimated to be 70 litres per hour. This level of consumption would suggest a leak. The next step is to turn off the centre's stopcock and see if the meter continues to run. This will help to confirm a leak.		
	In addition, the Clerk has contacted Thames Water to undertake a free 'smarter business visit'. During the visit, advice could be provided on potential water-saving devices, identify and potentially fix leaking toilets and fit free urinal controls if practical.		
	Members were provided with information regarding Covid Marshalls in West Berkshire. Members AGREED that the Linear Park should be suggested as a potential 'area of concern'.		
	b) Members AGREED that they would like to support the NHS and Frontline Workers Day which is scheduled to take place on 5 th July 2021. It is, however, too soon to make definite decisions on what the support will be. The item will be kept on the agenda and discussed at a later date.		
	A Member raised a concern regarding a bonfire which was held on Low Lane. Whilst it is hugely appreciated that the resident who held the bonfire had completed a significant amount of work clearing the footpath of natural debris, there are health and safety concerns regarding a bonfire in this location. A separate concern was raised that an oak tree has been cut in Low Lane (different resident). Clerk to discuss the concerns raised with the appropriate departments at West Berkshire Council.	PK	

No.	Notes		
161/20/21	Holybrook Festival		
	Updated Festival Constitution. APPROVED.		
	Zoom Meetings		
162/20/21	At the present time Parish Councils are permitted to hold remote meetings until 7 th May 2021 (meaning that Holybrook Parish Council's last Zoom meeting will be held on Monday 19 th April).		
	Members AGREED that their MP should be lobbied to have this time-frame extended or, at least, that hybrid meetings by allowed until the Covid-19 pandemic is more under control. At the present time there are still very compelling reasons to continue with remote meetings including the vaccination rollout schedule and the difficulties with socially distanced meetings.		
400/00/04	SLCC Press Release (Parish Council Meeting Goes Viral)		
163/20/21	Acknowledged.		
	Chairman's Remarks		
164/20/21	The Chairman commented that the Council had been using Zoom for close to a year now. It has not been easy but Members have done well and 'we are improving all of the time'.		
	There being no other business, the meeting closed at 20:55		

Signed:	Dated
---------	-------

Minutes prepared by	Pam Kirkpatrick, Clerk
Minutes dated	16 th February 2021

APPENDIX 1



Parish Council Report for January 2021

Clirs Argyle and Somner

(West Berkshire Council, Tilehurst South & Holybrook Ward)

West Berkshire Council

A belated happy new year, although not the start to 2021 that any of us would all have wished for a year ago! Despite the pandemic, we have a very full agenda in the coming twelve months and, now that the vaccination roll out is fully underway, look forward to life getting back to something near to normal as soon as possible.

Meetings

Council

The next meeting of Council is on 2 March and will see the setting of the Council's budget for 2021/22 – one of the set piece meetings of the year.

Executive

The Executive met for the first time this year on 14 January 2021. Among the items on the agenda were papers on the Cultural Heritage Strategy and an urgent item on the Newbury Sports Ground Project which obtained authorisation from the Executive to enter into detailed negotiations on heads of terms with Newbury Rugby Club.

Remote Meetings

Links to all agendas and public meeting papers are here, and all WBC public meetings are broadcast live on YouTube and recorded so that they can be viewed at leisure - <u>West Berkshire Council YouTube Channel</u>. Guidance for anyone attending a remote public meeting (eg a parish representative at a planning committee) is here.

It is anticipated that remote meetings will continue for some time to come although this will require The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 which were due to come to an end on 7 May being reviewed and renewed by Parliament.

Covid-19

Local Infection Rates

Although the country remains in national lockdown there are early signs that the infection rates have levelled and are beginning to fall. Whatever our position, it is against a background where we know that national lockdown will continue for some time.



As previously referred to, Berkshire local Covid information about the daily reported cases in the district (and across Berkshire), and the weekly per 100,000 rate (one of the principal factors in any decision making) can be accessed from Berkshire Public Health website.

Vaccinations – Local Position



The Covid vaccination rollout began on 15 December.

As stated last month, It will be appreciated that the mechanics of the vaccination programme is in the hands of the NHS, whether via hospitals and acute settings, Primary Care Networks (PCNs), or individual surgeries.

A group of surgeries in the West Reading Villages PCN to the north east of the district began a vaccination clinic in Pangbourne, and this was followed shortly afterwards by surgeries in the other three WBC PCNs (West Berkshire Rural, A34 and Kennet) setting up a clinic at Newbury Racecourse.

The priority cohorts for vaccination identified by the JCVI (Joint

Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation) are:

- Residents in a care home for older adults, and their carers
- All those 80 years of age and over and frontline health and social care workers
- All those 75 years of age and over
- All those 70 years of age and over and clinically extremely vulnerable individuals
- All those 65 years of age and over
- All individuals aged 16 years to 64 years with underlying health conditions which put them at higher risk of serious disease and mortality
- All those 60 years of age and over
- All those 55 years of age and over
- All those 50 years of age and over

West Berkshire has been supplied with both the Pfizer and Oxford AstraZeneca vaccine. The latter enabled most of those in Cohort 1 – care home residents and staff - to be vaccinated over the weekend of 16/17 January, with the process continuing over the following week. The majority of care home residents have been vaccinated – there may still be a few who were too unwell to be vaccinated in the first wave.

Generally, the rollout is going well but it will be appreciated that, as with the entire country, the district is entirely dependent on the supply of vaccine. The latest data indicates that everyone in Cohort 2 should have been offered a vaccination date very shortly (if this hasn't already been concluded) and that good progress is being made with regard to Cohort 3. Current indications are that (subject to supply) everyone in Cohorts 1-4 should have been offered a vaccination by mid-February.

It remains vital that even those who have received their first dose of the vaccination continue to follow the lockdown government guidance until more is known about transmission rates.

Vaccinations – National Position

As at 29 January 7.8m people had received their first dose. Weekly reports on the vaccine rollout are being published here, giving data at an Integrated Care System (ICS) – in our case at the level of the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ("BOB") ICS.

Local Testing

Much work is progressing to create community test sites, with the first expected to go live in the middle of February.

Covid Marshalls

WBC has agreed to fund six Covid Marshalls to cover West Berkshire for a period of three months. The Marshalls will undertake a range of duties including advising and supporting members of the public and businesses to follow social distancing rules. They will also provide support to the local community testing sites (see above).

Community Support Hub

Our support hub can still be contacted on 01635 503579 if needed.

Local Outbreak Engagement Board

The Local Outbreak Engagement Board meets on alternate weeks in private and in public. Thus, each fortnight, there is a live broadcast meeting to update residents of the current activities relating to Covid-19 in and around the district (and beyond). Public meetings are available on the Council's YouTube channel and further information about the Board can be found here.

Coronavirus information on the WBC website

The Council keeps up to date information for residents and businesses on the website.

Winter Hardship Grant Scheme

Support continues to be available for residents who are in need of help with food, utility bills and other essentials - for more information and applications, go here.

Financial Support for Businesses

West Berkshire Council is administering a further series of grant schemes to support local businesses that have been affected by the national coronavirus restrictions.

The new Closed Business Lockdown (National Lockdown) payment came into effect on 5 January 2021. This one-off Lockdown grant will be paid to qualifying businesses in addition to the Local Restrictions Support Grant payments that eligible businesses were entitled to from 19 December 2020.

A further £11m of government support is being distributed to West Berkshire businesses, with the Local Restrictions Support Grant (LRSG) being extended to cover the new national lockdown. This means that rate-paying businesses will receive a grant for this additional period of enforced closure. This round of funding replicates the previous scheme that ran from 5 November to 2 December 2020.

Both of the new grant schemes will be paid automatically to businesses who have received them before; there is no need to reapply. Any businesses that have not applied previously should check the criteria to see if they are eligible.

Information about eligibility, and how businesses who have not received support previously can apply, can be found here.

2021/22 Budget

The WBC Budget Council Meeting is on 2 March and it will be appreciated that a huge amount of work is going on to finalise the budget proposals for the coming financial year, including proposals for council tax and capital spend.

Draft Local Plan Review 2020 - 2037

There is still opportunity for members of the public to comment on the emerging draft version of the Local Plan Review 2020-37 (see last month's report for more detail) with the public consultation period closing on Friday (5 February). Parishes, residents, partners and other key stakeholders can read the draft Local Plan Review and provide feedback on the Council's Local Plan Consultation Portal.

Adult Social Care

BBC Panorama

Sara Ross, WBC's Service Manager for Responsive Providers (which includes the WBC care homes) was on Panorama recently talking about her experiences of the pandemic.

Willows Edge Care Home

Following a Covid outbreak at WBC's Willows Edge care home in Newbury, and 30 residents and 24 staff testing positive for the virus, seven residents who had tested positive sadly died.

There has now been an inspection by the Care Quality Commission as part of its response to outbreaks of coronavirus in care homes, seeking to ensure that the home's infection prevention and control practices are safe and compliant with CQC measures. The report shows that infection control standards are being fully met and provides positive feedback on the high standard of care provided by staff at the home.

Care Home Visiting Policy

The Policy has been revised following the lockdown and updated Govt guidance.

Education

Lockdown

The demand for children to attend school during the current lockdown is higher than the previous lockdown in March last year. Schools are doing their best, but the level of demand is now stretching school capacity and due to safety reasons some schools are having to ration places. Special schools, alternative provision and nursery schools are still expected to provide places for all children.

The Department for Education has updated the critical workers section of their guidance to clarify that parents and carers who are critical workers should keep their children at home if they can, to help manage demand.

A 'critical worker' is defined as a parent or carer whose work is critical to the Covid-19 and EU transition response, including those who work in:

- health and social care
- education and childcare
- key public services
- local and national government
- food and necessary goods
- public safety and national security
- transport and border, and
- utilities, communications and financial services.

Full Fibre for Schools

A successful joint bid by WBC and the Thames Valley Berkshire Local Enterprise Partnership has secured a £1.7m grant from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to deliver full fibre broadband to as many schools in the district as possible to improve their bandwidth and internet speeds, transforming the way teachers meet the demands of an increasingly digital curriculum.

Doctor's surgeries could also benefit from this additional funding. As we all become more used to virtual consultations, access to full fibre is proving increasingly important. If funding allows, more surgeries will be able to employ the technology.

Full fibre will also support the response of the Fire Service to emergencies by enabling digital options such as real time imaging and video conferencing.

Laptops for Home Learning

Before the latest lockdown, Government and WBC funding had provided 269 laptops for the most disadvantaged to use for home learning. A further allocation of 620 laptops has now been provided and these should be received by schools shortly. In addition, Greenham Trust has opened a fund, worth £250k so far, to allow schools to buy more laptops for pupils that need them.

Children's Mental Health Week

Children's Mental Health Week (CMHW) runs for the first week of February the theme for 2021 is *Express Yourself*. WBC's Education and Public Health teams are working together to provide a range of resources and activities for schools, parents, carers and pupils and our services and partners. A guide produced by Place2Be, the charity that set up CMHW, is on its way to schools and highlights the importance of children and young people's mental health. To learn more about what's happening over the week, go here.

Leisure and Culture

Consultation on Newbury Sports Ground

The Council is consulting residents on its plans for a new sports ground in Newbury.

In particular, the Council would like to know whether local people support the proposal and the construction of an artificial pitch, the facilities they'd like to see at the ground, and whether they feel this new ground will give them more opportunities to get involved in sport and physical activity.



The feedback will inform the details of an application for planning permission, should the Council proceed with the proposal.

Newbury Rugby Club has been identified as the preferred site for the facility which would include a high-quality artificial grass pitch, stadium, floodlights and changing room as well as a function room. It would be available for community use for rugby, football and other sports and activities.

At its meeting on 14 January, the Executive agreed to begin formal discussions with the Rugby Club, with the aim of opening the sports facility in March 2022.

The new facility will help deliver the Council's Playing Pitch Strategy, and provide a Step 6 facility – which means teams would have the facilities needed to play in higher leagues. It would also serve as a replacement for the Faraday Road Sports Ground, which closed ahead of the regeneration of the London Road Industrial Estate.

Details of the consultation, which is open until the end of February can be found here.

Libraries

West Berkshire Libraries will continue to offer a limited service during the national lockdown restrictions, with library buildings open for book collections only, and public use of computers in libraries has been suspended.

The easiest way to borrow titles is via the apps BorrowBox and Libby, which can be downloaded from the Apple app store and Google Play store. Customers who have a Kindle tablet (such as Kindle Fire) can download the apps from Amazon. Anyone who has these apps can then search for West Berkshire Libraries and login using their library card number and PIN (members can reset their library PIN here). Customers who need help with this can drop an email to the library, where staff will be happy to help: library@westberks.gov.uk.

Customers who are not already members of the library can join online to get free, instant access to the e-library by registering. Residents are encouraged to check out the extensive programme of activities for children and adults, which will continue online, and follow the library Facebook, Twitter or Instagram pages (@WBerksLibraries).

Transport and Countryside

Flytipping

Following a report and supporting evidence provided by a member of the public in late 2019, an investigation by officers from the Council's Waste Team led to a Tadley resident recently pleading guilty to fly tipping on the Ridgeway near Compton, contrary to ss 33(1)(a) and 33(6), Environmental Protection Act 1990. The resident was ordered to pay a total of £2,447.78.

Environment

Waste and recycling

Like many other local authorities across the country, we faced a difficult January with significantly increased volumes of waste after the Christmas holiday period and a number of collection crews self-isolating.

The impact on parts of our waste collection services led to the decision to temporarily suspend garden and food waste collections to prioritise rubbish and recycling.

The garden waste collection service was suspended for one collection and has now resumed.

Help the Recycling Crews:

- Please make sure your containers are easily accessible.
- Recycling is sorted into the correct containers.
- Fold large cardboard as small as possible to fit in green box or next to it.

THANK YOU

● VEOLIA





Solar Farm Grazeley

Following the decision not to include proposals for an element of the previously proposed Grazeley Garden Settlement in the draft Local Plan (see last month's report), a solar farm could be built on land near Grazeley as part of WBC's plans to reduce its reliance on fossil fuels and help combat climate change.



The Council is exploring this possibility as part of its strategy to become carbon neutral by 2030. A feasibility study found that a solar farm provides a viable option for clean, green energy which would offset around 30% of the Council's carbon footprint, taking into account the estimated carbon footprint of key contractors working on behalf of the Council.

The plans would see more than 45,000 solar panels installed on up to 75 acres of land already owned by the Council – generating enough electricity each year to power approximately 4,400 homes.

Funding for the project, which is estimated to cost around £10m and is subject to further studies and procurement, will be included in the capital strategy for Council to approve on the 2 March. Subject to the approval of funding and

planning permission being granted work, could start on the site in 2022.

Communications Channels

As well as Twitter there are also a number of Facebook pages which the Council uses, for example:

- West Berkshire Council;
- West Berkshire Community Support Hub Group;
- West Berkshire Libraries.

The WBC website also contains more about the CSH and useful information for residents and businesses:

Residents https://info.westberks.gov.uk/coronavirus-residents
Business https://info.westberks.gov.uk/coronavirus-business
Community hub

Broadcast meetings West Berkshire Council YouTube Channel

Linked to all of these initiatives is the WBC Customer Service telephone line: 01635 551111.

Other Matters

Community Champions

The Council recently announced the 2020 winning results of Community Champion Awards following the submission of nearly 100 nominations from across the district. Individual volunteers and community groups have been crowned as Community Champion 2020 Winners, Highly Commended, and Commended, for their valuable contributions to improving the lives of people in West Berkshire.

In addition to the traditional four categories, four Covid Response specific awards were added to recognise the fantastic volunteer



efforts throughout the pandemic. The latter included a new "Big Thank You Award" created to show appreciation for individuals or groups who gave support to the community outside of the other Covid award categories, or for deserving individuals who would appreciate more low key recognition.

For 2020, Volunteer Centre West Berkshire and Greenham Trust each supported an award; Volunteer of the Year (Non Covid) and Community Group of the Year (Covid) respectively.

The awards, which have grown significantly since they first started in 2014, were judged by an independent panel and the award winners were announced by video by the Chairman of Council, Cllr Graham Pask.

Census - March 2021



It is a statutory obligation to complete the census.

The Office of National Statistics is leading the planning and delivery of the Census on 21 March.

Local authorities are one of the key beneficiaries of the rich data resulting from the Census which informs local decision making processes. In addition, local authorities have detailed understanding of the areas they cover.

WBC will be supporting the work to ensure that the Census 2021 is a success (defined by achieving a 95% response rate nationally whilst ensuring that no local area achieves a rate below 80% and, for the 2021 Census, to receive 75% of responses on line).